QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 CH2M HILL SOLICITATION NO. 112608 HANFORD MEDIUM/LOW CURIE WASTE PRETREATMENT ALTERNATIVES PROJECT
Question 1:  Reference Section 3.1.5 Phase I Pretreatment Process Plan of the Statement of Work for Solicitation Number 112608:

The second sentence in that paragraph refers to “specific items listed in Section 4.4.”  We cannot find a Section 4.4 in the SOW.  Should it be Section 4.1.4?

Answer:  Yes, it should be 4.1.4.  The Statement of Work has been corrected to reflect this change. 
Question 2: Section 3.0 of the RFP states that “CH2M Hill may award one or more subcontracts” under this procurement.  Does CH2M Hill intend to make multiple awards?  If so, how many awards are anticipated? 

Answer: Yes. The number of subcontracts awarded by CH2M HILL will depend on the quality and estimated cost of the received proposals.

Question 3: The SOW describes a research and development project to demonstrate application of new technologies to 137Cs separation.  Does CH2M Hill also have an interest in using this procurement to demonstrate existing technologies that have already proven to be successful in 137Cs separation of salt wastes? 

Answer: CH2M HILL is interested in proposals that include demonstration of existing technologies that have been proven successful in 137Cs separation from salt wastes.  Please refer to the Statement of Work, Section 1.0, Paragraph 3, which states:

The objective of Phase I is to provide a Pretreatment Process supported by laboratory-scale data and associated computer modeling. This work will demonstrate the technical feasibility of a Pretreatment technology capable of performing the separations described above, using simulated Hanford tank waste.  Selection of the technology is up to the Subcontractor; however 137Cs ion exchange has been adequately dealt with elsewhere, and is not a candidate technology for consideration within the scope of this SOW.  

Part A, Section 3.2 of the Solicitation expressly states that CH2M HILL will evaluate Past Performance and Experience in Comparable Work when reviewing proposals.  

Question 4: The RFP and attachments widely reference the “Fractional Crystallization Method” of radionuclide separation.  Should potential bidders infer from this that CH2M Hill is directing this procurement toward pretreatment using the Fractional Crystallization Method? 

Answer:  CH2M HILL is not expressing a preference for the use of fractional crystallization as a waste pretreatment technology.  Please refer to the Statement of Work, Section 1.0, Paragraph 3, 3rd Sentence which states:

Selection of the technology is up to the Subcontractor, however 137Cs ion exchange has been adequately dealt with elsewhere, and is not a candidate technology for consideration within the scope of this SOW.

CH2M HILL was aware that some potential Offerors may not be as knowledgeable as others concerning recent testing and demonstration of certain waste pretreatment technologies such as fractional crystallization.  CH2M HILL has made this information available to all potential Offerors to “level the playing field.”

Question 5: Following completion of Phase II, will the contractor with the best proven technology have the opportunity to negotiate for detailed design, construction, start-up, and/or operation of a full-scale system at Hanford?

Answer: The Solicitation does not address conditions for a postulated Phase III.  If CH2M HILL elected to proceed with the postulated Phase III, CH2M HILL will establish the basis for this postulated procurement in the future.

Question 6: What are the anticipated production requirements for the full-scale 137Cs removal system (i.e., planned startup and mission completion dates, and anticipated total volumes of dissolved saltcake and supernate to be treated by this system?

Answer: Please refer to the Statement of Work, Section 2.2, Paragraph 2:

The production Pretreatment System (i.e., full-scale process and facility) will be designed to process 10 gallons per minute (gpm) of dissolved saltcake (SST) or salt slurry (DST) waste that has a soluble sodium ion concentration of nominally 5-7 M.  One of the constraints of the full scale deployment shall be that no major, new capital facilities shall be required at Hanford to implement the concept.

As discussed in the Statement of Work, Section 1.0, the Pretreatment System may support the low activity waste supplemental treatment immobilization technology.  The Department of Energy is not expected to make a decision regarding the production-scale supplemental treatment immobilization technology before 2005.  Therefore, the planned startup and mission completion dates as well as the anticipated total volumes of dissolved saltcake and supernate to be treated by the Pretreatment System have not been established.  

Question 7: Section 4.1.3.6 (Quality Assurance Certification) requires that the Offeror have a QA Program that covers “analytical methods”.  The QA Program is required to be certified by the EPA or the State.  The analytical work will have to be done by a certified laboratory using their procedures and QA Program.  It is recommended that the solicitation and SOW wording be revised to allow the prime contractor to utilize a subcontractor’s procedures and QA Program for the analytical laboratory work.

Answer:  CH2M HILL does not intend to modify the Statement of Work.  The member of the Offeror’s team that performs the laboratory scope must meet the Quality Assurance Certification requirements of Section 4.1.3.6 of the Solicitation.  The Offeror is directed to the various sections of the Statement of Work which states:

The Subcontractor is required to have an acceptable Quality Assurance (QA) program covering the analytical methods employed, as demonstrated by EPA or state certification of the program.  Certification through other QA standards, such as ISO17025, is an acceptable alternative, as long as the laboratory can demonstrate analytical proficiency through periodic analysis of performance evaluation samples.

Question 8: Exhibit 1 (Cost Proposal Form) does not differentiate between Phase 1 and Phase 2 costs.  Should the cost estimate be provided only for Phase 1 or should it include the optional Phase 2 scope?  If the Phase 2 work must be estimated, should a separate Exhibit 1 form be submitted for this work scope?

Answer:  Refer to Section 4.1.3.2 of the Solicitation.  A separate Cost Proposal Form must be submitted for Phase I and Phase II.  

Question 9: The simulants provided by CH2M HILL will not contain non-rad Cs.  It is not clear how testing without a Cs spike in the simulant would provide any useful information on the viability of the process with respect to Cs removal.  Please clarify how the Phase 1 test results will be evaluated if Cs removal cannot be demonstrated?

Answer: CH2M HILL will include cesium in the simulant.  Footnote (b) to Table 1 and Table 3 of the Statement of Work will be amended to read: 

Table 1: “The simulant will not contain radioactive cesium; the activity shown in the table is representative of the levels expected in actual waste (e.g., Phase II samples).  The simulant will contain non-radioactive cesium at a concentration representative of the total cesium present in the early and late SST Feed Solutions.”

Table 3: “The simulant will not contain radioactive cesium; the activity shown in the table is representative of the levels expected in actual waste (e.g., Phase II samples).  The simulant will contain non-radioactive cesium at a concentration representative of the total cesium present in the DST Feed Solutions.”

Question 10: The Pretreatment Process Plan is required to “discuss total life cycle cost impact to Hanford Tank Farms of implementing this Pretreatment process”.  Can CH2M HILL provide background information on Tank Farm operational costs to enable the offeror to assess life cycle cost impact to Tank Farms?

Answer: CH2M HILL does not intend to provide information on Tank Farm operational costs to potential Offerors.  The Offeror should address the incremental total life cycle cost impacts to Hanford Tank Farms based on the implementing of the Offeror’s Pretreatment process.  The incremental total life cycle cost impacts should address cost elements such as: developing, engineering, design, construction, annual operating and decontamination and decommissioning for the Offeror’s Pretreatment process.  The Offeror should separately address corresponding benefits of the Pretreatment process.
Question 11:  Do bidders have the ability to contact anyone directly familiar with the need being addressed by the subject solicitation?  If so, can you direct met to a technical point of contact?  The statement of work emphasizes the need for cesium removal, but indicates that additional treatments (for removal of technetium and transuranics) may be required.  However, information on the concentrations of these constituents contained in the solicitation is not adequate to determine the extent of treatment required, if treatment is required at all.
Answer: No, you should not be having communications with any CH2M HILL personnel except through procurement concerning any aspect of this solicitation (refer to Section 2.4 of the Solicitation).  The solicitation does not require the removal of strontium, technetium, or transuranic elements from the SST or DST feeds.  CH2M HILL will conduct simple solid-liquid separation for the selected waste feeds to remove solids that contain strontium and transuranic elements.  The Offeror is not required to conduct the solid-liquid separation step.  CH2M HILL has selected waste feeds that do not require removal of strontium, technetium, or transuranic elements from the liquid fraction following solid-liquid separation.
Question 12:  Could you please provide the names of other potential proposers who might entertain teaming on this solicitation? 

 
Answer: There is no official bidders list for this solicitation.   This solicitiaton was posted on our external website which is accessible to anyone.  The solicitiaton did request that interested parties respond with a notification of their intent to propose by August 12, 2004.  This request will not preclude someone from submitting a proposal that did not respond.  We did receive notifications from various companies, laboratories and universities of their intent to submit a proposal; however, their teaming arrangements were not disclosed.  We, therefore, do not consider it to be practical to publish a comprehensive list of potential offerors. 

Question 13:  Page 2 of the SOW, Section 2.1, last paragraph, last sentence states that “Identification and proposed disposition of problematic waste components (other than those listed herein) are within the scope of this SOW”.  Sulfate is listed as a problematic waste component, and “contaminants of concern” are listed as Cs137, I129, Tc99, Sr90, Se79, C14, total uranium, total alpha isotopes, Cr(VI), nitrite, and phosphate.  What other problematic waste components are envisioned?

Answer: Phosphate is potentially a problematic waste component for some of the tank wastes and should be preferentially diverted to the Bulk Vitrification System.  If the Subcontractor’s proposed Pretreatment System introduces constituents that are known to be problematic for joule-heated melter systems operating at ~1100oC, the Subcontractor shall identify and propose disposition of these problematic constituents, in accordance with the SOW.

Question 14: The feed and product specifications are provided in the SOW for some species: Cs137, sodium and sulfate.  However, additional “Contaminants of Concern” are identified in the SOW (I129, Tc99, Sr90, Se79, C14, total uranium, total alpha isotopes, Cr(VI), nitrate, nitrite and phosphate), but no product specifications are given for any of these and feed specifications are only given for the last four.  The product specification for an additional contaminant group (TRU) is given, but no feed specification is given for this.  Is the contractor required to demonstrate that his process will route these additional species to the appropriate product stream and meet the specifications for these species?

Answer: The acceptable requirements listed in Table 2 of the SOW pertain to only two contaminants of concern; cesium-137 and TRU elements.  The Pretreatment System for the LAW is required to ensure that radionuclides (primarily 137Cs and 99Tc) are diverted preferentially to the WTP.  The Subcontractor is required to prepare a mass balance for the other contaminants of concern consistent with SOW sections 3.1.1, 3.1.2, 3.2.1 and 3.2.2.  

Question 15: In the Statement of Work page 21, section 10 it is stated that “The Subcontractor shall perform all work at the subcontractor’s premise with no visitor access to Hanford Site facilities”.  Please confirm that this clause is not intended to preclude the use of the Hanford Site laboratories for this work.

Answer: Section 10 of the SOW is not intended to preclude the Subcontractor from contracting with the Hanford Site laboratories for this work.
Question 16:  Reference SOW Article 2.2, last sentence of second paragraph. – Please clarify what is meant by “One of the constraints of the full scale deployment shall be that no major, new capital facilities shall be required at Hanford to implement the concept.”

Answer: The desired feature of the full scale system is modular equipment / components readily deployable without major construction activities.

Question 17:  Reference Model Contract Article 10, List of Attachments item 3 “General Provisions” – We assume that the applicable General Provisions, as found on the hyperlink, are those entitled “Services General Provisions Cost Reimbursement Contract Type” Revision 4, dated February 12, 2004.  Please confirm if our assumption is correct. 

Answer:  The applicable General Provisions are those entitled Services General Provisions Cost Reimbursement Contract Type, Revision 5, dated June 17, 2004 as referenced in the Model Subcontract, Article 10.  The hyperlink has been fixed and should now contain this latest version. 
Question 18:  Reference SOW Article 4.1.4 (page 13) and 4.2.4 (page16).  “Deliverables prepared under this SOW shall become the property of the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE) – Office of River Protection (ORP)”. - Please confirm that all deliverables under the anticipated contract are subject to the provisions of FAR 52.227-14 “Rights in Data-General” as set forth in the Services General Provisions Cost Reimbursement Contract Type (GP 7.1 Item 5).
Answer: Deliverables under the anticipated subcontract may be subject to FAR 52.227-14 (as modified by DEAR 927.409 (a)) in addition to DEAR 970.5227-1, “Rights in Data – Facilities” (GP 7.1 Item 21).  
Question 19:  Reference SOW Articles 3.1.2 (page 6) and 3.2.1 (page 9). - For samples that originate from Hanford, the Hanford Analytical Services Quality Assurance Requirement Document has been the quality assurance program required by DOE/RL and DOE/ORP in support of regulatory and site clean up.  The following is taken directly from Volume One of the HASQARD; "HASQARD applies to work done to support process chemistry analysis (e.g. on-going site waste treatment and characterization operations) and research and development projects related to Hanford Site environmental clean up mission".  Can a laboratory that has a QA program compliant with HASQARD and has periodic analysis of performance evaluation samples, but lacking state or other outside agency accreditation be considered responsive to the RFP requirement?

Answer: Yes.

Question 20:  Reference SOW Articles 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 – During the conduct of this project, laboratory work (Phase I especially) will be conducted to develop an optimum flow sheet from a multitude of potential flow sheets.  It does not seem cost-effective to conduct all laboratory analysis from those preliminary tests by certified analytical methods.  Indeed, some important analyses for design do not have certified methods.  Would it satisfy the requirements of the SOW that certified analysis be used only for the demonstration test for the final flow sheet? (i.e. for the analytes listed in Section 3.1.1)

Answer: Yes.

Question 21:  Reference SOW Articles 3.2.1 and 3.2.2 - CH2M Hill requests mass balance for Cs, Sr, TcO4, and I.  Does CH2M HILL really want a mass balance on element/analyte indicated or are they really interested in mass balance on isotopes Cs-137, Sr-90, Tc-99 (as pertechnatate), and I-129?

Answer:  For Phase II testing, the Subcontractor can choose to prepare a mass balance for Cs, Sr, TcO4, and I or the isotopes Cs-137, Sr-90, Tc-99, and I-129.  The SOW will be amended to reflect this change.

Question 22:  Reference SOW Article 3.1.1 – Cesium (Cs) and Strontium (Sr) are listed as contaminants of concern in Table 2.  Calculated mass balances for Cs/Sr are required for Phase I work and measured mass balances are required for Phase II.  To ensure that our proposed processes perform as designed, will non-radioactive species of Cs and Sr be included in the stimulant (sic simulant) for Phase I testing?

Answer: CH2M HILL will include cesium and not strontium in the Phase I simulants.

Question 23:  Due to the volume of detailed information required for submission of the technical and business and price proposals, we respectfully request that CH2M HILL grant a three-week extension to the due date for proposals.
Answer: CH2M HILL will amend the solicitation to grant a two-week extension to the due date for proposals.  The new due date will be close of business on Monday, October 4, 2004.

Question 24:  Is an estimated value for TcO4 and CrO4 acceptable or must they be

direct measured?  
Answer:  As stated in SOW section 3.1.1 and 3.1.2, the Subcontractor must provide calculated (not measured) mass balance figures for Cs+, Sr2+, TcO4-, I-, and U(total) in Phase I.  As stated in SOW section 3.2.1 and 3.2.2, the Subcontractor must provide measured mass balance figures for Cs+, Sr2+, TcO4-, I-, and U(total) in Phase II.

Question 25:  Relative to Cs, Sr, I - do you want elemental or radio-isotope or both?  
Answer: For Phase I, the Subcontractor should prepare a mass balance for Cs, Sr, TcO4, and I. For Phase II testing, the Subcontractor can choose to prepare a mass balance for Cs, Sr, TcO4, and I or the isotopes Cs-137, Sr-90, Tc-99, and I-129.  The SOW will be amended to reflect this change.

Question 26:  "total alpha isotopes" - Is this total alpha measurement or isotopic?  If isotopic, which ones?  
Answer: Total alpha measurement will suffice.

Question 27:  Are regulatory "hold times" required for Cr(VI) and IC?  
Answer:  No.  Concentrations of the analytes of interest are not expected to vary with time.

Question 28:  For hydroxide, is pH and alkalinity acceptable vs. hydroxide direct?  
Answer: pH is not an acceptable alternative for hydroxide measurement unless the process reduces the hydroxide concentration below 0.02 M hydroxide, in which case pH is preferred. In the case of the "Late Feed" SST stream, the initial hydroxide concentration is likely to be less than 0.02 M, so pH is preferred to hydroxide measurement in that case.

Question 29:  The ionic components in the SOW Tables 1 and 3 are not charge balanced.  Please provide corrected tables.

Answer: No change to SOW Tables 1 and 3.  Each of the analyte concentrations in Tables 1 and 3 represents an average of analytical results for several tank waste samples typical of the waste streams depicted in the tables.  The charge balance is off by less than 5% for Table 1 and less than 10% for Table 3, which is reasonable given the data source, analytical precision, rounding errors, and exclusion of minor waste components.  As the SOW states, the tables show the “approximate concentrations” of chemicals in the feeds.  CH2M HILL expects that the Pretreatment System will be flexible enough to handle the stated variations in feed compositions.  The SOW also states that CH2M HILL will provide a “recipe” for the simulated waste samples that will be shipped to the subcontractor(s).  The “recipe” will include a charge-balanced composition.

Question 30:  How much Technetium, Strontium, and other element noted in footnote A of table 2 are present in feed streams.

Answer:  The actual waste samples provided for Phase II testing will contain a maximum concentration of the following radionuclides.  Other radionuclides may be present at concentrations lower than the radionuclides listed in the table below.

	Radionuclide
	Bq / mole Na
	(Ci / mole Na

	TRU
	4.80E+05
	1.30E+01

	90Sr
	4.40E+07
	1.19E+03

	99Tc
	7.10E+06
	1.92E+02

	60Co
	6.10E+04
	1.65E+00

	154Eu
	6.00E+05
	1.62E+01


TRU is defined as:  Alpha-emitting radionuclides with an atomic number greater than 92 with half life greater than 10 years.

Some radionuclides, such as 90Sr and 137Cs, have daughters with relatively short half-lives.  These daughters have not been listed in this table.  However, they are present in concentrations associated with the normal decay chains of the radionuclides.  

Question 31: Do we assume actual feed streams are free of undissolved solids?

Answer: No change to SOW.  Yes, the Subcontractor should assume the actual feed streams are free of undissolved solids.  CH2M HILL plans to conduct simple solid-liquid separation prior to transferring the dissolved saltcake waste (retrieved from SSTs) and/or dissolved salt slurry waste (from DSTs) to the production Pretreatment System.

Question 32:  Please confirm that there are no organic components in the test samples other than those listed in tables 1 and 3.

Answer: No change to the SOW.  The organic components of the Phase I simulant samples provided by CH2M HILL will be limited to the sodium oxalate and sodium acetate listed in Tables 1 and 3.  The Phase II actual tank waste samples may contain a variety of other organics (e.g., formate, acetate, citrate, EDTA, HEDTA, oxalate, and their degradation products).  The Phase II actual tank waste samples will not contain a separable organic phase.  The concentration of organics contained in the Phase II actual tank waste samples is insufficient to form stable compounds that solubilize the transuranic elements and strontium in the actual tank waste.

Question 33:  In order to more fully understand the capabilities/limitations of the 242A evaporator system is it possible to get flowsheets and layout drawings.

Answer:  No change to the SOW.  In section 4.1.1.3 of the transmittal letter for solicitation no. 112608, the Chapter 2 of the Facility Description for the existing, operational 242 A Evaporator/Crystallizer in the Hanford 200East Area has been identified as a reference document.  These reference documents, D3287099 and D3287373 are posted on the CH2M HILL procurement web site along with the SOW and solicitation.

Question 34:  Section 2.2 of the SOW states that no major new capital facilities shall be required to implement the concept.  Can CH2M HILL provide a list of existing facilities and equipment that may be utilized or replaced to accommodate the pretreatment system?

Answer: No change to the SOW.  CHG does not have a comprehensive list of existing facilities and equipment that can be used with the Pretreatment System.  

Question 35:  Will CH2M HILL be receptive to a proposal response that includes a portion of the scope being executed under a Field Work for Others Program with a national laboratory?

Answer:  No change to the SOW.  Yes, CH2M HILL will consider proposals that include a portion of the scope being executed under a Field Work for Others Program or similar agreement with a national laboratory.  However, the Subcontractor is responsible for administering the Field Work for Others agreement (or similar agreement).  

Question 36:  Please confirm that there are no accountable quantities of nuclear materials.

Answer: No change to the SOW.  The simulants provide for testing in Phase I will not contain radioactive materials.  The actual waste samples provided by CH2M HILL for Phase II testing activities contain analytes consistent with the concentrations listed in Tables 1and 3 of the SOW and radionuclides such as but not limited to technetium-99, cesium-137, barium-137m, strontium-90, yttrium-90, cobalt-60, europium-154, and isotopes of plutonium, americium and uranium.  The individual actual waste samples will contain less than 1 gram of plutonium fissile grams equivalent.

Question 37:  In Part A, Section 3.2.1 one of the evaluation factors listed is “Cost 
to deploy concept”. Please clarify how CH2M Hill will evaluate this factor since the cost to deploy the concept will not be developed until late in Phase 1.

Answer:  The cost to deploy the concept is one of the evaluation factors as stated in Section 4.1.2 of Solicitation No. 112608 for evaluating the technical concept; it is a factor in selecting the winning proposal(s).  The cost identified here is based upon the Offeror’s best judgment of the proposed concept and any relevant deployment experience, and may be much more approximate than the cost presented in the Phase I deliverable 4.1.4, Pretreatment Process Plan.  That cost, most likely better justified as a result of Offeror's Phase I work, will be a factor in CH2M HILL determining whether to proceed with Phase II.
Question 38:  In Exhibit 2: Representations and Certifications, the NAICS code for this acquisition has been left blank. Please clarify.


Answer:  The NAICS code for this acquisition is 541330.  The small business size standard is $4M.  The solicitiaton will be amended to include this information. 
Question 39:  Will eventual remediation be performed on a tank-by-tank basis, or will treatment be staged in a manner that will allow for blending of wastes from different tanks in order to dampen waste composition extremes?  Can a provision for blending be incorporated into a plan?  

Answer:  No change to SOW.  Variations in feed composition are anticipated not only from one tank to another, but also with the extent of retrieval within a given tank, hence the “early” and “late” composition designations in Tables 1 of the SOW.  The Pretreatment System should be designed to handle both compositions, as well as intermediate compositions, without resorting to large-scale blending of feed streams.  CH2M HILL will not be able to provide tank space for large-scale lag storage.

Question 40: The sodium levels in the SST tank characterization presented in Table 1 of the Statement of Work seem high (i.e., exceeding ambient solubility).  Are tank temperatures elevated (e.g., due to decay heat), or is there some other explanation for the high soluble cation concentrations?  

Answer: No change to SOW.  The sodium levels in Table 1 of the SOW do not exceed the ambient-temperature solubility of any of the components. The levels shown in Table 1 of the SOW for all components are average analytical values for a number of tank waste samples representative of the streams listed.  The simulant waste samples to be provided by CH2M HILL will not be super-saturated in any component.  Actual tank waste temperatures are available through the TWINS database (http://twins.pnl.gov/twins3/twins.htm).

Question 41:  May we have the radionuclide content of applicable DST tank wastes or be granted access to the Hanford tank waste database?  This information would be of benefit in the planning and estimation of costs associated with Phase II of the project.  

Answer:  No change to SOW.  Tank waste inventory data, chemical and radionuclide inventories, are available to the public at http://twins.pnl.gov/twins3/twins.htm
Question 42:  The charges do not balance in the waste compositions specified in the SOW.  Can CH2M HILL offer any guidance on what ions might be added for purposes of simulant preparation?  Such guidance would enable greater uniformity and applicability of test results among bidders who wish to perform preliminary tests.  

Answer:  No change to SOW Tables 1 and 3.  Each of the analyte concentrations in Tables 1 and 3 represents an average of analytical results for several tank waste samples typical of the waste streams depicted in the tables.  The charge balance is off by less than 5% for Table 1 and less than 10% for Table 3, which is reasonable given the data source, analytical precision, rounding errors, and exclusion of minor waste components.  As the SOW states, the tables show the “approximate concentrations” of chemicals in the feeds.  CH2M HILL expects that the Pretreatment System will be flexible enough to handle the stated variations in feed compositions.  The SOW also states that CH2M HILL will provide a “recipe” for the simulated waste samples that will be shipped to the subcontractor(s).  The “recipe” will include a charge-balanced composition.
Question 43:  Section 3.1.3 of the SOW indicates the subcontractor will prepare a Phase 1 Testing and Demonstration Plan that will address "Pretreatment process flowsheet computer modeling using the Environmental Simulation Program by OLI, Inc.(r) and the associated Hanford Tank Waste Data Base or equivalent." The Environmental Simulation Program (ESP) is a thermodynamic model that predicts the solubility of chemical species under varying solution conditions. It is therefore useful in modeling pretreatment processes based on dissolution and/or precipitation of waste components, such as fractional crystallization. However, it does not provide a suitable model for pretreatment processes that are not based on dissolution and/or precipitation. Is it acceptable to substitute a more appropriate program for modeling the pretreatment process flowsheet?
Answer: No change to the SOW.  Section 3.1.3 allows the Subcontractor to propose the use of “equivalent” software for computer modeling of the Pretreatment process flowsheet.

Question 44:  Regarding RFP Section 3.1.2 Qualification Standard No. 2, is operating in compliance with the Hanford Analytical Services Quality Assurance Requirements Document (HASQARD) adequate to meet this standard?
Answer: Yes.

Question 45:  The requirement stated in Table 2 of the SOW (Section 3.1.1) that the TRU concentration be < 100 nCi/g is confusing since TRU removal does not appear to be included in the scope of the SOW. Likewise, the reason for listing the contaminants of concern in footnote "a" of that table is unclear since the SOW focuses primarily on Cs removal. If removal of other contaminants of concern is included in this SOW, then the expected concentrations of those components need to be listed in Tables1 (SOW Section 3.1.1) and Table 3 (SOW Section 3.1.2), and corresponding requirements in Table 2.
Answer: The acceptable requirements listed in Table 2 of the SOW pertain to only two contaminants of concern; cesium-137 and TRU elements.  The Pretreatment System for the LAW is required to ensure that radionuclides (primarily 137Cs and 99Tc) are diverted preferentially to the WTP.  The Subcontractor is required to prepare a mass balance for the other contaminants of concern consistent with SOW sections 3.1.1, 3.1.2, 3.2.1 and 3.2.2.  

Question 46:  What levels of actinides are expected to be in the feed?  

Answer:  The actual waste samples provided for Phase II testing will contain a maximum concentration of the following radionuclides.  Other radionuclides may be present at concentrations lower than the radionuclides listed in the table below.

	Radionuclide
	Bq / mole Na
	(Ci / mole Na

	TRU
	4.80E+05
	1.30E+01

	90Sr
	4.40E+07
	1.19E+03

	99Tc
	7.10E+06
	1.92E+02

	60Co
	6.10E+04
	1.65E+00

	154Eu
	6.00E+05
	1.62E+01


TRU is defined as:  Alpha-emitting radionuclides with an atomic number greater than 92 with half life greater than 10 years.

Some radionuclides, such as 90Sr and 137Cs, have daughters with relatively short half-lives.  These daughters have not been listed in this table.  However, they are present in concentrations associated with the normal decay chains of the radionuclides.  

Question 47:   What level of solids should the process be expected to deal with?  How much insoluble (potentially rich in alpha) will be fed out of tanks (vs. chunks of salt)?  

Answer: No change to SOW.  The Subcontractor should assume the actual feed streams are free of undissolved solids.  CH2M HILL plans to conduct simple solid-liquid separation prior to transferring the dissolved saltcake waste (retrieved from SSTs) and/or dissolved salt slurry waste (from DSTs) to the production Pretreatment System.

Question 48:  Are there any other technical requirements on the feed to bulk vitrification feed (i.e. does it need to meet DST and pipeline requirements?)

Answer:  No change to the SOW.  The DST storage and pipeline transfer requirements do not apply to the Bulk Vitrification feed.  Additional interface requirements may be developed as part of Phase III as a separate, subsequent subcontract involving further engineering and/or pilot scale testing, conceptual design and analysis deemed necessary for the pursuit of full scale deployment.

Question 49:  Are there any limits (quantity and/or type) to adding reagents to the process (e.g. sodium hydroxide) other than those imposed by meeting the requirements of Table 2?

Answer: No.

Question 50: Is there a threshold (e.g. < $10M) that defines “no major, new capital facilities”?

Answer: CH2M HILL has not established a threshold dollar value for this solicitation.  The desired feature of the full scale system is modular equipment / components readily deployable without major construction activities.  Deployment cost is a criterion that will be evaluated for the submitted proposals.

Question 51:  What levels (and oxidation state) of the contaminants of concern listed as part of Table 2 are expected to be in the feed to the process?  Not all contaminants of concern listed under Table 2 are shown as feed constituents in Tables 1 and 3.
Answer: The acceptable requirements listed in Table 2 of the SOW pertain to only two contaminants of concern; cesium-137 and TRU elements.  The Pretreatment System for the LAW is required to ensure that radionuclides (primarily 137Cs and 99Tc) are diverted preferentially to the WTP.  The Subcontractor is required to prepare a mass balance for the other contaminants of concern consistent with SOW sections 3.1.1, 3.1.2, 3.2.1 and 3.2.2.  The oxidation states are listed in these sections of the SOW.  The Phase I simulants will contain cesium, but not transuranic elements.  

